
*In accordance with GVR Bylaws, all meetings of the Board at which official business of The Corporation is transacted, with the exception of meetings limited to personnel and/or legal matters, shall be open to all members 
of The Corporation. An executive session “placeholder” is added to each Regular Meeting Board agenda should the Board have personnel and/or legal matters to address. Meetings shall be governed by Roberts Rules of Order
unless otherwise determined by the Board of Directors.

AGENDA 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Wednesday, April 28, 2021 – 2pm 
West Center Auditorium & Zoom 

Directors:  Mike Zelenak (President),  Nina Campfield (Vice President), Ted Boyett (Secretary), 
Donna Coon (Treasurer), Mark McIntosh (Assistant Secretary), Randy Howard (Assistant Treasurer), 
Kathi Bachelor, Carol Crothers, Christine Gallegos, Bart Hillyer, Bev Lawless, Don Weaver 
Scott Somers (non-voting) 

AGENDA TOPIC PRESENTER EXHIBIT ACTION 

1. Call to Order / Roll Call – Establish Quorum Zelenak Y 

2. Adopt Agenda Zelenak Y Y 

3. Consent Agenda Zelenak Y Y 
A. Minutes – April 7, 2021; April 14, 2021
B. Financial Statements – December 2020; January 2021; February 2021; March 2021

4. Presentation
A. Quarterly Financial Presentation Webster 

5. New Business
A. Accept 2020 Audit Report Moose Y 
B. Demolition of East Center Pool Jund Y Y 
C. Establish Late Fees for Delinquent Accounts Moose Y Y 
D. GVR Advertising Whitman Y Y 

6. Committee Reports
A. Audit Weaver 
B. Board Affairs Campfield 
C. Fiscal Affairs Coon 
D. Investments Lawless 
E. Nominations & Elections McIntosh 
F. Planning & Evaluation Boyett / Campfield 

7. Member Comments

8. Adjournment

Informational Reports 
Audit Recommendations 
2021 Member Assistance Program 

Y 



 

  A regular meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
was held Wednesday, April 7, 2021 in the West Center Auditorium. The President was in the 
chair. 
 
Directors Present: Ted Boyett, Nina Campfield, Donna Coon, Carol Crothers, Bart Hillyer 
(arrived at 2:08pm), Randy Howard, Bev Lawless, Mark McIntosh, Don Weaver, Mike Zelenak, 
Scott Somers (CEO, non-voting) 
 
Directors Present Electronically: Christine Gallegos 
 
Directors Absent: Kathi Bachelor 
 
Staff Present: Jen Morningstar (Director of Administrative Services), David Jund (Facilities 
Director), Kris Zubicki (Recreation Services Director), Randy Cheatham (IT Director), Natalie 
Whitman (Communications Manager), Karen Miars (Administrative Assistant), Marie Seixas 
(Meeting Scribe) 
 
Guests: 7 in-house/11 electronically (both include additional staff) 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call – Establish Quorum 

President Weaver called the meeting to order at 2:00pm MST. Roll was called and a quorum 
established. 
 

2. Adopt Agenda 
 
MOTION: Zelenak/seconded. Adopt Agenda as presented. 
Passed: unanimously 
 

3. Consent Calendar 
A. Minutes March 17, 2021 
B. Minutes March 31, 2021 

 
MOTION: Zelenak/seconded. Approve March 17 and March 31, 2021 Meeting 
Minutes as presented. 
Passed: Yes – 9; Abstain – 1 (Campfield) 
 

4. New Business 
A. Election 2021-22 Officers 

i) President 
a) Nomination 

a. Hillyer – not in attendance 
b. Zelenak – will run 

b) Uncontested - Appointed 
a. Zelenak 

 
 



 

2 
 

ii) Vice-President 
a) Nomination 

a. Boyett – will run 
b. Campfield – will run 
c. Howard – will not run 

b) Election 
a. Campfield – 9; Boyett – 1 

 
**Director Hillyer arrived at 2:08pm MST. 
 

iii) Secretary 
a) Nomination 

a. Boyett – will run 
b. Coon – will not run 
c. Hillyer – will run 
d. Lawless – will not run 

b) Election 
a. Boyett – 9; Hillyer – 2 

 
iv) Treasurer 
a) Nomination 

a. Coon – will run 
b. Crothers – will run 
c. Howard – will not run 

b) Election 
a. Coon – 9; Crothers – 2 

 
v) Assistant Secretary 
a) Nomination 

a. Gallegos – will not run 
b. Hillyer – will run 
c. Lawless – will not run 
d. McIntosh – will run 

b) Election 
a. McIntosh – 9; Hillyer – 2 

 
vi) Assistant Treasurer 
a) Nomination 

a. Crothers – will run 
b. Howard – will run 
c. Lawless – will not run 

b) Election 
a. Howard – 9; Crothers – 2 

 
 
 
 
 



 

3 
 

 
B. Strategic Plan Agreement 

 
MOTION: Campfield/seconded. Move to authorize the CEO to enter into an 
agreement with Zelos, LLC to facilitate the next 5-year strategic plan. 
Passed: Yes – 9; No – 2 (Crothers, Hillyer) 
 

CEO Somers requested an addition to the agenda to move into Executive Session at 3:00pm 
MST for a Zoom meeting with GVR Attorney Wendy Ehrlich regarding the use of video 
cameras on GVR property. 

 
MOTION: Crothers/seconded. Move into Executive Session in five (5) minutes for 
Zoom meeting with GVR Attorney Wendy Ehrlich. 
Passed: unanimously 

 
5. Member Comments – no member comments received 
 
6. Adjournment 

 
MOTION: Weaver/seconded. Move to adjourn the meeting at 2:31pm MST. 
Passed: unanimously 

 
 

 
 
 



 

  A special meeting of the GREEN VALLEY RECREATION, INC. BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
was held Wednesday, April 14, 2021 in the West Center Auditorium with several directors 
present electronically. The President being in the chair and the Secretary being present. 
 
Directors Present: Don Weaver (President), Nina Campfield (Vice President), Donna Coon 
(Treasurer), Kathi Bachelor, Carol Crothers, Bart Hillyer, Bev Lawless, Mike Zelenak, Scott 
Somers (CEO) (non-voting) 
 
Directors Present Electronically: Ted Boyett (Secretary), Mark McIntosh (Assistant 
Secretary), Randy Howard (Assistant Treasurer), Christine Gallegos 
 
Staff Present: Jen Morningstar (Director of Administrative Services), David Jund (Facilities 
Director), Shelley Freeman (Arts & Entertainment Supervisor), Natalie Whitman 
(Communications Manager), Karen Miars (Executive Office Administrative Assistant), Marie 
Seixas (Meeting Scribe) 
 
Guests: 2 in-house/8 electronically (includes additional staff) 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call – Establish Quorum 

President Weaver called the meeting to order at 8:30am MST. Roll was called and a quorum 
established. 
 

2. Adopt Agenda 
 
MOTION: Crothers/seconded. Adopt Agenda as presented. 
Passed: Yes – 11; Abstain – 1 (Hillyer) 
 

3. New Business 
A. Election – President 

 
a) Nomination 

a. Hillyer – will run 
b. Weaver – will not run 
c. Zelenak – will run 

b) Election 
a. Zelenak – 9; Hillyer – 3 

 
President Zelenak assumed the meeting and gave a statement. 

 
B. Committee Members Terms – Scott Somers, CEO 

CEO Somers presented options for discussion and consideration that support continuity 
and representation on committees. 1) Establish terms, the number of members for each 
committee, along with the maximum number of committees a member may serve upon, 
2) establish terms and number of members for each committee, or 3) continue the 
present practice of committee chairs appointing members each year. 
 
CEO Somers asked, rather than the Board trying to come to a decision at this meeting 
regarding this topic, that the Board charge the Board Affairs Committee to review this 
process and report back to the Board during the coming year. 



 

2 
 

 
MOTION: Crothers/seconded. Motion to charge the Board Affairs Committee to 
review the process of Board Committee terms, study the Bylaws and CPM 
mandates in this regard, and meet with and get opinions from members. Board 
Affairs to bring their findings back to the Board within three months. 
 
Discussion followed. 
 
AMENDMENT TO MOTION: Zelenak/seconded. Move to strike the time limit 
“within three months” to return to the Board with findings. 
Passed: Yes – 9; No – 3 (Bachelor, Crothers, Hillyer) 
 
REVISED MOTION: Crothers/seconded. Motion to charge the Board Affairs 
Committee to review the process of Board Committee terms, study the Bylaws 
and CPM mandates in this regard, meet with and get opinions from members, 
and return to the Board with their findings. 
Passed: unanimously 
 

C. Appoint Committee Chairs – President Zelenak 
In compliance with Article 7 Section 4-A of the Bylaws of Green Valley Recreation, Inc. as 
President of the Board of Directors I hereby nominate the following to chair the current 
Green Valley Recreation, Inc. standing committees: 
 

• Board Affairs – Nina Campfield 
• Fiscal Affairs – Donna Coon 
• Planning and Evaluation – Ted Boyett and Nina Campfield 
• Investments – Bev Lawless 
• Nominations and Elections – Mark McIntosh 
• Audit – Don Weaver 

 
** Director Bart Hillyer left the meeting at 9:00am MST. 
 

MOTION: Weaver/ seconded. The GVR Board of Directors approve the 
appointment of 2021-2022 Committee Chairpersons as nominated by the 
President. Discussion followed. 
Passed: Yes -10; No – 1 (Crothers) 
 

4. Member Comments – none 
 
5. Adjournment 
 

MOTION: Howard/seconded. Adjourn the meeting at 9:10am MST. 
Passed: unanimously 

 
 











































Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Prepared By: Cheryl Moose, CFO Meeting Date: 4/28/2021 

Presented By: Cheryl Moose, CFO Consent Agenda: No 

 

Originating Committee / Department: Finance 

Action Requested: Accept the 2020 audit report 

Strategic Focus Area: NA 

Background Justification:  
Each year GVR has its financial information audited by an outside independent 
audit firm in order to ensure that our statements are prepared according to 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles as we are required to do. For 2020, 
this audit was completed with the results being an unqualified opinion (the best 
you can get) with no findings.  
 
Fiscal Impact: NA 

Board Options:  
1) To accept the 2020 audit report prepared by HBL. 
2) To not accept the 2020 audit report prepared by HBL. 
 

Staff Recommendation:  
Option #1 
 
Recommended Motion:  
I move to accept the 2020 audit report as prepared by HBL. 

Attachments:  
Hard copy of the audit report will be distributed at the meeting. 

 



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Prepared By: David Jund, Facilities Director Meeting Date: April 28, 2021 

Presented By: David Jund, Facilities Director Consent Agenda: No 

 

Originating Committee / Department: Facilities Department 

Action Requested: Direct staff to pursue demolition and removal of the East 
Center pool/spa and deck.  

Strategic Plan Focus Area: GVR Services 

Background Justification: 
In regard to the East Center Pool Replacement Project, conducting demolition 
and removal of the East Center pool/spa and deck during the development 
phase of construction drawings and permitting, GVR will be able to: 

 Save on total costs of the project 

 Show progress to the members 

 Have access to the soils currently beneath the vessel  

 Have the soils undergo further geotechnical evaluation 

 Have a geotechnical evaluation report to aid bidding pool contractors in 
developing their proposals   

 
Fiscal Impact: 
Request for proposals were sent to 3 demolition contractors. To date, only 
Penhall Company has submitted a proposal for $72,000.  
 
It has been estimated by AquaDesign International, that by subcontracting the 
demolition service, GVR may save approximately $28,000 on the total East 
Center Pool Replacement Project.  
 

Board Options: 
1. Direct staff to proceed with demolition and removal of the East Center 

pool/spa and deck with Penhall Company at cost not to exceed $75,000.   
2. Direct staff to incorporate the demolition and removal of the pool/spa 

and deck as part of the contract with the selected certified pool 
contractor executing the East Center pool replacement. 

3. Provide alternative direction to staff. 



 

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 
 

Recommended Motion: 
I move to direct staff to proceed with demolition and removal of the East Center 
pool/spa and deck with Penhall Company at a cost not to exceed $75,000.  
 

Attachments: 
Quote from Penhall Company 

 



 
 

Concrete Sawing, Drilling, Scanning and Breaking 

    

   PROPOSAL 

 Date: 4-20-2021 Phone: 520-625-3440 

Attention: David Jund Fax:  

Company: Green Valley Recreation Email: djund@gvrec.org 

Re: Green Valley East Rec Center Pool and Spa demo 
 

        Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for your consideration.  I have listed below a scope of work outlining what is 
included in the quoted price.  Please feel free to contact me with any questions.  Penhall Company proposes to furnish labor and 
equipment to: 
         
Saw, demo and haul off; 

• Entire pool and spa, pool deck 

• Site wall surrounding pool area 

• Associated landscaping along site wall  
 
 

DESCRIPTION LENGTH (SF) WIDTH THICKNESS SF  AMOUNT 

       

       

       

Total      $72,000.00 
 
GPR Scanning of the concrete is recommended and is available from Penhall for an additional charge of $175.00/hr.  Hourly rate will be charged for all time on site and travel from and to our local branch 
office.  Orientation, badging and drug testing, parking fees, permitting, utility location, call before you dig, temporary walls and barricades, bonding, liquidated damages, retainage, layout, cleaning and power 
washing are all excluded.  The price is based on one mobilization only and continuous, clear and unobstructed access to the work.  If the scope changes or quantity, dimensions or thickness exceed those 
qualified herein, additional charges will apply. The Proposal Price does not include sales tax, use tax, excise tax, business tax, or other similar taxes or duties. Customer shall pay all such taxes in addition to the 
Proposal Price, or, alternatively, shall provide Penhall with acceptable proof of tax exemption. Customer understands and agrees that Penhall’s Standard Terms and Conditions (which are available on 
Penhall’s website (www.penhall.com/us/standard-terms-conditions) or by request) are incorporated by reference into this Proposal and shall apply, in addition to the terms of this Proposal, to all transactions 
between Customer and Penhall related to this Proposal.   
 

 

PROPOSAL IS BASED ON THE EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS BELOW.  PLEASE READ CAREFULLY 
Additional charges will apply with change of conditions. 

 

• Proposal expires after 90 days if not accepted in the same period.   

• Night, weekend and holiday work will incur additional charges.   

• Penhall Company is not responsible for any water damage that may occur.   

• Final grading/compacting by others. 

• One mobilization is included.  Additional mobs may incur an additional charge.  $600.00 each. 
• Covering of holes and openings for safety purposes is excluded.   

• Layout, access, protecting public from harm’s way, shoring and bracing, traffic control and barricades, and locating, cutting, capping and 
protection of utilities is excluded. 

 
 
 
 
 
Please sign and e-mail to broman@penhall.com upon acceptance.  A signed proposal is required prior to Penhall mobilization. 

Accepted by:  Submitted by: Brad E. Roman 

Title:   for Penhall Company, Inc. 

Company:  Cell Number: 520-730-6782 

Date:  Date: 4-20-2021 

 

 

../../www.penhall.com/us/standard-terms-conditions
mailto:broman@penhall.com


Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

Prepared By: Cheryl Moose, CFO Meeting Date: 4/28/21 

Presented By: Cheryl Moose, CFO Consent Agenda: No 

 

Originating Committee / Department: Finance 

Action Requested: Approve assessing late fees on member accounts in the 
amount of $20 per month for the year 2021. 

Strategic Plan Goal: NA 

Background Justification:  
GVR has historically had a late fee of $20 per month that is approved annually 
during the budget process. For the 2021 budget year, this fee was inadvertently 
left off of the approved Fee Schedule for Board approval. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  
Not imposing late fees will have a negative effect on GVR’s revenue during 
2021. Late Fee revenue is usually about $75,000. GVR is currently under budget 
in late fees of approximately $60,000. 

Board Options: 
1) Approve a $20 late fee per month on delinquent member accounts 

beginning May 2021. 
2) Approve a monthly late fee in a different amount on delinquent member 

accounts beginning May 2021. 
3) Do not approve any late fees on delinquent member accounts in 2021. 

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 
 

Recommended Motion: 
I move to approve assessing late fees on delinquent member accounts in the 
amount of $20 per month for the year 2021 beginning in May 2021. 

Attachments: 

 



Green Valley Recreation, Inc. 

Board of Directors Meeting 

 

Prepared By: Natalie Whitman,      Meeting Date: 4/28/21 
 Communications Manager 
  

Presented By: Natalie Whitman,          Consent Agenda: No 

 Communications Manager  
 

Originating Committee / Department: Communications 

Action Requested:  Determine whether or not to continue GVR’s current 
advertising program. 

Strategic Plan Focus Area: Revenue generation 

Background Justification:  
In a March 17, 2021 Work Session, the Board discussed an analysis of the GVR 
advertising program and directed staff to look into retaining some elements of 
the program, namely sponsorships by relevant businesses (ie. a Penn tennis 
sponsorship and associated banners on the court fences) and other sports court 
banner advertising.  
 
GVR’s approximately six year-old program was initiated to generate non-dues 
revenue to support operations. Over the past four years, average net profits of 
the full program are estimated at $28,224. Currently, sports court banner 
revenues represent approximately $6,600 of total program income. 
 
In seven of nine “Chat with the CEO” meetings, members expressed a need for 
improved communications from GVR.  
 
Pros of the program:  
-Modest revenue stream 
-Some trades have been valuable: KGVY provides informative radio spots in 
exchange for a sports court banner and an eblast banner 
-Possibly supporting community businesses by providing an affordable 
advertising option 
 



Cons: 
-Banner ads on the website and in the eblast distract from the content and 
 invite members to leave GVR’s informational and marketing materials to view 
other business’s marketing materials. In the eblast, the addition of banner ads 
pushes information of interest to members down the page.  
-Repeated advertising of this nature may be perceived as endorsement of 
certain businesses. 
-The GVR Now! print publication has become primarily an advertising channel, 
with meaningful GVR-related content as a secondary consideration. Agreements 
with advertisers constrain GVR’s flexibility with the production schedule and the 
amount of content we might prefer to publish from month to month. 
-A large number of staff are involved: sales, accounting, graphic design, 
communications, IT, customer service, and facilities. The accumulated 
opportunity cost is significant. 
-The sports court banner portion of the program generates little income 
 

Fiscal Impact: See attached marketing analysis prepared by Finance 
Department. 

Board Options: 
1. Curtail current program. Continue select trades with high value (namely, 

with KGVY). Revisit sponsorship possibilities at a later date. 
2. Direct the CEO to allocate staffing resources to continue the program. 

Staff Recommendation: 
Option #1 
 

Recommended Motion:   
I motion to discontinue GVR’s current advertising program but direct staff to 
revisit sponsorship possibilities at a later date when higher-priority, member-
requested communications improvements have been established. 
 
Attachments: 
Marketing analysis 
 

 



2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 5 Year Total 5 Year Average 4 Year Average

Advertising Revenue (4091) 30,870$   59,550$   108,861$   129,559$   123,872$   452,712$     90,542$               105,461$           

Printing Costs 16,063$     35,563$     31,050$     82,676$        16,535$               27,559$               FULL COST OF PRINTING GVRNOW

Other Advertising Costs 326$           326$             65$                       326$                    

Professional Fees 434$        673$        19,818$     51,500$     29,539$     101,965$     20,393$               25,383$               LYNDA CAMPBELL COMMISSIONS

Wages & Benefits 29,644$   19,694$   4,724$       4,820$       17,471$     76,353$        15,271$               11,677$               ALL POSITIONS, FOLLOWING STAFF:
l CAMPBELL

Other Expenses 2,132$     4,650$     23,299$     10,433$     7,770$       48,284$        9,657$                 11,538$               CC FEES, CELL, A RIBLETT
MILEAGE, S FREEMAN
OTHER PRINTING M GARCIA

Expenses 32,210$   25,017$   63,904$     102,317$   86,156$     309,604$     61,921$               69,349$               M CHAPDELAIN
B RIVETT

Direct Profit (Loss) (1,340)$    34,533$   44,957$     27,242$     37,716$     143,108$     28,622$               36,112$              

2,803$     2,845$     2,888$       2,931$       2,975$       14,442$        2,888$                 2,910$                

Total Direct Profit 1,463$     37,378$   47,845$     30,173$     40,691$     157,549$     31,510$               39,022$              

This is a marginal analysis to determine the bottom line effect that Marking activities have on GVR

  GVR Now, non advertising labor 3,159                    estimated non direct overhead
  Accounting Overhead (AP Checks, Deposit processing, general bookkeeping) 1,123                    estimated non direct overhead
Business Insurance 1,818                    estimated non direct overhead
Office supplies (minimal) 240                       estimated non direct overhead
Office space costs (minimal) 2,000                    estimated non direct overhead
Other Administrative Labor (Management, Administration Allocation) 2,457                    estimated non direct overhead

Total Estimated Non Direct Advertising Costs 10,797                

Net Profit to GVR after allocating Non Direct Costs 28,224$              

Plus Savings for Average Cost 
to publish in GV News

GVR
Marketing Department Analysis

No Fixed Overhead has been applied above, 
Examples of Overhead items not included:

(if Advertising is eliminates, does the 
GVRNow cost disappear?)

Estimate based on HISTORICAL cost to 
place insert in GV News many years 
ago

Comment



























 

 

 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Cheryl Moose, CFO 
 
DATE: April 28, 2021 
 
RE: 2020 Member Assistance Program Report 
 

 

 
Report of 2021 Member Assistance Program 
 

 83 applications received 

 39 first time applicants 

 3 members withdrew their applications 

 9 applicants denied (did not meet eligibility criteria) 

 65 applicants received full award $505.00 

 6 applicants received partial award of $252.50 

 Total 2021 awards $33,835.00 


	04282021 BOD Meeting Book.pdf
	2 04282021 BOD Meeting Agenda
	3a1 04072021 BOD Minutes - DRAFT
	3a2 04142021 BOD Special Meeting Minutes - DRAFT
	3b 1220-0321 Financial Statements
	5a Staff Report 2020 Audit Report 04282021
	5b1 Staff Report EC Pool Spa Demolition 04282021sts
	5b2 GV East Rec Center
	5c Staff Report 2021 Late Fees 04282021
	5d Staff report - Advertising 04282021
	9a Informational Report Auditor Recommendation 2019 and 2020 
	9b Informational Report 2021 MAP
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page

	Advertising Marketing Analysis_3.12.21.pdf



